### **Bylaws**

### Article I

### **Corporate Name**

# The name of this corporation is Vernal Youth Football

#### Article II

## **Objectives**

The Objectives of Vernal Youth Football will be as follows:

- 1. To organize and sponsor youth football teams in Vernal Utah.
- 2. Vernal Youth Football will create a fun, safe, and positive opportunity for youth to learn and participate in the fundamentals of football.
- 3. The organization is organized exclusively for charitable, educational, and/or scientific purposes under section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- 4. To engage in any and all other lawful purposes, whether similar or dissimilar to the foregoing and to engage in any lawful act for which a non-profit corporation is permitted under 16-6a of the Utah Code.

### Article III

## **Board of Directors**

The affairs of the corporation shall be managed by a board of 5 voting directors. The initial board of directors shall be appointed by the incorporators and the board of directors shall appoint future directors. Each board of director member will serve at the will of the Incorporators and will serve

with the duties of that position as requested and required by the Incorporators

## **Article IV**

## **Powers of Directors**

The Board of Directors shall have the entire management of the business of the corporation. In the management and control of the property, business, and affairs of the corporation, and the Board of Directors is hereby vested with all the powers possessed by the corporation itself, so far as its delegation of authority is not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Utah, with the Articles of Incorporation, or with these bylaws.

#### Article V

### **Meetings of Directors**

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such places and at such times as the board by vote may determine, and if so determined, no notice thereof need be given. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time or place whenever called by Incorporators or Board Directors. The Board of Director meeting may be conducted through the use of any means of communication by which all Directors are able to participate and may hear

each other during the meeting. A Director participating in a meeting by this means is present in person at the meeting.

### Article VI

### **Quorum of Directors**

A two-thirds majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A quorum must be present to decide questions requiring a vote, at which time a majority vote shall decide such questions, except as otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws.

### **Article VII**

### **Board of Directors**

The officers of this corporation shall be a President (Incorporator) Vice President/Secretary (Incorporator) and 3 Assistant Directors. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors after its annual meeting.

#### **Article VII**

## **Additional Officers and Agents**

The Board of Directors, at its discretion, may appoint such other non-voting officers as it deem advisable, and prescribe the duties thereof.

#### **Article IX**

## <u>President</u>

The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation, and when present, shall preside at all meetings of the Directors. The President or Vice President, unless some other person has been specifically authorized by vote of the Board of Directors, shall sign all bonds, deeds, mortgages, extensions, agreements, leases, checks and contracts of the Corporation. He or she shall perform such other duties as the Board of Directors shall designate.

#### Article X

### Vice- President/ Secretary

The Vice-President/Secretary shall assist the President and perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors. Shall issue notice for meetings and shall have charge of the corporate books of the corporation.

### Article XI

### **Assistant Directors**

The Assistant Directors as listed above will have the authority as listed in the following items.

- a. Interprets and enforces all policies and procedures of the league
- Individually and jointly enforces league articles of incorporation, agreements, by-laws, rules, policies, and procedures including but not limited to, the removal of coaches, players, or spectators for violations of these

#### Article XII

## **Resignation and Removals**

Any officer or Director of the corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation, the President, Vice President, or to the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if the time is not specified therein, upon its acceptance of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors, by not less than a majority of the entire board, may remove from office any officer elected or appointed by it after having been given the officer a proper hearing. The accused officer shall have ten (10) days written notice of such hearing. Said notice shall specify the charges against said officer as well as the time and place of the hearing.

### **Article XIII**

### Vacancies

If the office of any officer becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise, the Directors may by vote of a majority choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired time.

### **Article XIV**

### **Political Activities**

No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in or intervene in the (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in the opposition to any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles of Incorporation, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended or supplemented, or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170 (c) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended and supplemented.

### XV

### Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of the corporation, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501 © (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended or supplemented, or shall be distributed to the federal government or to a state or local government for a purpose. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the District Court of the county in which the principal office of the corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organizations as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated for such purposes.